
 

                                                                                                   
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

PZHAC WORK SESSION 
AGENDA 

APRIL 15, 2019 
 
THE PLANNING, ZONING AND HISTORICAL APPROPRIATENESS COMMISSION (PZHAC) WILL HOLD 
A WORK SESSION, MONDAY, APRIL 15, 2019 AT 5:30 P.M. IN THE BOARD ROOM OF THE MESILLA 
TOWN HALL, 2231 AVENIDA DE MESILLA. 
 
Item 1: Submitted by Felix Armijo; a request to discuss plans to install an old door on the east side of the store occupied 
by “The Real Man” at 2290 Calle de Parian. (Case 060872) Zoned: Historical Residential (HR) 
Item 2: Submitted by Robert Carson; a request to discuss plans to construct a new dwelling on a vacant property located 
at 3000 Mesilla Verde Terrace. (Case 060877) Zoned: Rural Agricultural (RA) 
Item 3: Submitted by William and Mary Davidson; a request to discuss plans to install a trellis above an existing rock 
wall at the rear of a residential property at 2880 Teresita Street. (Case 060879) Zoned: Historical Residential (HR) 
Item 4: Submitted by Eugenio G. Diaz; a request to discuss plans to build a work shed behind a dwelling at 2483 Calle de 
San Albino. (Case 060880)  Zoned: Historical Residential (HR) 

 
 

PZHAC REGULAR MEETING 
AGENDA 

APRIL 15, 2019   
 
THE PLANNING, ZONING AND HISTORICAL APPROPRIATENESS COMMISSION (PZHAC) WILL HOLD 
ITS REGULARLY SCHEDULED MEETING MONDAY, APRIL 15, 2019 AT 6:00 P.M. IN THE B OARD 
ROOM OF THE MESILLA TOWN HALL, 2231 AVENIDA DE MESILLA. 
 
I.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
II. ROLL CALL AND DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM  
 
III. CHANGES/APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 
IV. *ACCEPTANCE OF THE CONSENT AGENDA 

Note: Items on the agenda indicated by an asterisk (*) are on the consent agenda and will be voted on with one 
motion unless a Commissioner requests that a specific item be removed for discussion. 

A. *PZHAC MINUTES – PZHAC Work Session, Regular Meeting and Public Hearing of April 4, 2019. 
B. *ADMINISTRATIVE APPROVAL 

Zoning Permits 
1.   Case 060871 – 2290 Calle de Parian, submitted by Felix Armijo; a request for a zoning permit to allow the 

repair of window frames on a commercial building at this address. Zoned: Historical Residential (HR) 
2. Case 060873 – 2168 Calle de Los Huertos, submitted by Geronimo  Garcia; a request for a zoning permit to 

allow the replacement of several roofing shingles on a dwelling at this address. Zoned: Historical 
Residential (HR) 

3. Case 060874 – 210 Capri Road, submitted by Vicki Kroeger; a request for a zoning permit to allow the 
installation of a concrete walkway to the back yard of a dwelling at this address. Zoned: Residential, one 
acre new lot size (R-1) 

4. Case 060876 – 2631 Calle Tercera, submitted by Francisco Torres; a request for a zoning permit to allow 
the installation of a concrete pad (flatwork) for use as a patio for a dwelling at this address. Zoned: 
Historical Residential (HR)  

 



 

V. PZHAC NEW BUSINESS: 
A.  PUBLIC INPUT ON CASES 
B.  CASES:  

1. Case 060872 – 2290 Calle de Parian, submitted by Felix Armijo; a request for a zoning permit to allow  the 
installation of  an old door on the east side of the store occupied by “The Real Man” . Zoned: Historical 
Residential (HR) This case was discussed during the Work Session – Item 1) 

2. Case 060875 – 2684 Calle de Principal, submitted by Elizabeth Ann Rohovec; a request for a zoning permit 
to repaint a dwelling at this address. Zoned: Historical Residential (HR)  

3. Case 060877 – 3000 Mesilla Terrace, submitted by Robert Carson; a request for a zoning permit to allow 
the construction of a new dwelling on a vacant property located at this address. Zoned: Rural Agricultural 
(RA) This case was discussed during the Work Session – Item 2) 

4. Case 060878 – 2838 Calle de Principal, submitted by Anita M. Morales; a request for a zoning permit to 
restucco a dwelling this address. Zoned: Historical Residential (HR)  

5. Case 060879 – 2880 Teresita Street, submitted by William and Mary Davidson; a request for a zoning 
permit to install a trellis above an existing rock wall at the rear of a residential property at this address. 
Zoned: Historical Residential (HR) (This case was discussed during the Work Session – Item 3) 

6. Case 060880 – 2483 Calle de San Albino, submitted by Eugenio G. Diaz; a request for a zoning permit to 
build a work shed behind a dwelling at this address. Zoned: Historical Residential (HR) (This case was 
discussed during the Work Session – Item 4) 

 
VI.   PUBLIC COMMENTS 
  
VII.  PZHAC/STAFF COMMENTS   
    
VIII. ADJOURNMENT  
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

NOTICE 

If you need an accommodation for a disability to enable you to fully participate in the hearing 
or meeting, please contact us at 524-3262 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting.   

Posted on 4/11/19 at the following locations: Town Hall - 2231 Avenida de Mesilla; Public 
Safety Building - 2670 Calle de Parian; Mesilla Community Center - 2251 Calle de Santiago; 
Shorty’s Food Mart - 2290 Avenida de Mesilla; Ristramnn Chile Co. - 2531 Avenida de Mesilla 
and the U.S. Post Office - 2253 Calle de Parian. 

 

larry
Cross-Out



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PZHAC NEW BUSINESS 

APRIL 15, 2019 

 

WORK SESSION 

 

  



 
PZHAC WORK SESSION 

APRIL 15, 2019 
ITEM 1 

 
Submitted by Felix Armijo; a request to discuss plans to install an old door on the east side of the store occupied by “The 
Real Man” at 2290 Calle de Parian. (Case 060872) Zoned: Historical Residential (HR) 
 
DESCRIPTION OF REQUEST: 
The purpose of this request is to allow the applicant to install an old door in the wall of the commercial shop at this 
address in order to use its windows. The door will be installed in a part of the structure’s adobe wall that once had a door 
in it, but the door was removed (see attached photo). The portion of the original doorway that was patched will be 
removed to allow for the door.  However, instead of installing the door as a door, it will be sealed in place and used for 
its windows. The exterior trim around the door will be attached to the exterior of the wall. The door is similar to other 
doors in the structure and may even have been the door that was originally removed from this location.  
 
The building does appear in the Historical Register (see attached) and was considered to be architecturally similar as 
well as contributing to its surroundings, even though substantial additions and alterations to the structure have taken 
place through the years, according to the Register. It also has National significance. According to the register, the walls 
in the structure appear to have been changed many times. Some of the remaining walls may date back to the 1880’s or 
even the 1850’s.   
 
Once the door is completely installed, it will appear to be an operating part of the structure from the outside and will be 
finished to fit in with and enhance the historic character of the structure while providing light to the store at this location. 
It does not appear that the door will have a negative impact on the architecture of the structure, and may actually add to 
the historic character of the structure by returning a door to this location. 
 
CONSISTENCY WITH THE CODE: 
The PZHAC will need to determine that the proposed wall will be compatible with the historical aspect of the surrounding 
area, and will be consistent with the following section of the Code: 

Chapter 18.35 HR – Historical Residential Zone 
The proposed wall could be compatible with the HR zoning of the property if it is completed and painted to match 
the rest of the dwelling.  
 

The applicant will be present at the work session to provide further details about the proposed use of the door, and will 
be available to answer any questions that may arise. 
 

PHOTO OF PROPERTY F ROM CALLE DE PARIAN SHOWING THE DOOR LOCATION 

 



Doña Ana County, NM
General Reference Maps

2014 Aerial Addresses County Address Points

+
–



PHOTO OF THE EXISTING DOORWAY INSIDE THE STRUCTURE 
(TAKEN 4/10/19) 

 
 



PHOTO OF THE DOOR SET INTO THE OPENING IN THE EXTERIOR WALL OF THE 
STRUCTURE 

 
 



PHOTOS SHOWING SIMILARITIES TO OTHER DOORS IN THE STRUCTURE 

  
 

   



larry
Rectangle

larry
Rectangle











larry
Rectangle





PZHAC WORK SESSION 
APRIL 15, 2019 

ITEM 2 
 
Submitted by Robert Carson; a request to discuss plans to construct a new dwelling on a vacant property located 
at 3000 Mesilla Verde Terrace. (Case 060877) Zoned: Rural Agricultural (RA) 

 
DESCRIPTION OF REQUEST: 
The subject property is currently one of the last two vacant properties left out of twelve properties in the Mesilla Verde 
Subdivision, which is a cluster subdivision with lots ranging in size from about 1.1 to 1.5 acres in size. The property is a 
1.39 acre lot on the cul-de-sac at the west end of Mesilla Verde Terrace, and is bordered along its southwest edge by 
Estrada Road. The property is surrounding by other similar sized or larger properties, all zoned RA. Most of these lots 
contain large single family dwellings or pecan trees.  
 
The dwelling will be about 3,425 square feet in heated and cooled area on one floor. In addition to the dwelling area, 
there will be a 1,063 square foot garage, and 1,470 square feet of porches for a total of 7,058 square feet. Access to the 
dwelling will be directly from Mesilla Verde Terrace.  Liquid waste disposal will be handled by a septic tank. Water is 
available either by domestic well or from a nearby water line operated by the Town. 
  
Photos of dwellings on the other lots of the subdivision are attached, along with a survey showing the pad site for the 
dwelling. Also included is a set of elevations for the dwelling. According to the applicant, the style and color of the 
dwelling will be similar to other dwellings in the RA and RF zones, and the plans meet all the requirements of the 
covenants for the subdivision. 
  
CONSISTENCY WITH THE CODE: 
The PZHAC will need to determine that the proposed wall repairs will be compatible with the historical aspect 
of the surrounding area, and  will be consistent with the following section of the Code: 

Chapter 18.25 RA – Residential/Agricultural Zone 
This zone is intended to encourage a suitable environment for single-family residential use on large 
parcels of land on the periphery of the built-up portions of the town and to provide for a low density of 
population. [Ord. 94-06 § 1; prior code. 
 

The PZHAC will need to determine that the proposed dwelling is compatible with the development zone for the 
property. 
 
The applicant will be present at the work session to provide further details about the proposed construction of 
the walls and shed, and will be available to answer any questions that may arise. 

PHOTO OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY 

 



Doña Ana County, NM
General Reference Maps

2014 Aerial Addresses County Address Points

+
–









PHOTOS OF OTHER DWELLINGS ALONG MESILLA VERDE TERRACE 

 
 

 
 
 



PHOTOS OF OTHER DWELLINGS ALONG MESILLA VERDE TERRACE 

 
 

 
 



PHOTOS OF OTHER DWELLINGS ALONG MESILLA VERDE TERRACE 

 
 

 
 



PHOTOS OF OTHER DWELLINGS ALONG MESILLA VERDE TERRACE 

 

 



PHOTOS OF OTHER DWELLINGS ALONG MESILLA VERDE TERRACE 

 
 

 
  







WORK SESSION 
APRL 15, 2019 

ITEM 3 
 
Submitted by William and Mary Davidson; a request to discuss plans to install a trellis above an existing rock 
wall at the rear corner of a residential property at 2880 Teresita Street. (Case 060879) Zoned: Historical 
Residential (HR) 
 
DESCRIPTION OF REQUEST: 
The applicant would like to extend the height of a section of a four-foot high rock around the back yard of a 
residential property at this address in order to provide for privacy in the back yard. Part of the wall abuts a park 
owned by the Town. The extension will consist of a trellis added to the top of the wall that will add two feet in 
height to the wall (see attached diagram). The trellis will be added to the top of the using wood uprights to be 
located along the existing rock wall (see attached photo).   
 
The proposed extension has been approved by the HOA for the Mesilla Farms Subdivision, and is also allowed 
by the Mesilla Town Code.  
 
CONSISTENCY WITH THE CODE: 
The PZHAC will need to determine that the proposed wall extension will be compatible with the HR Zoning of 
the property.  
 
The applicant will be present at the work session to provide further details about the proposed construction of 
the walls and shed, and will be available to answer any questions that may arise. 
 

PHOTO OF PROPERTY FROM TERESITA STREET 

 
 
 



Doña Ana County, NM
General Reference Maps

2014 Aerial Addresses County Address Points

+
–









PHOTOS OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY FROM UNIVERSITY AVENUE AND THE PARK 

 
 

 





WORK SESSION 
APRL 15, 2019 

ITEM 4 
 
Submitted by Eugenio G. Diaz; a request to discuss plans to build a work shed behind a dwelling at 2483 Calle 
de San Albino. (Case 060880)  Zoned: Historical Residential (HR) 
 
DESCRIPTION OF REQUEST: 
The applicant would like to enclose an existing carport at the rear of an existing dwelling in order to create a 
work shed. The carport is currently partially enclosed and is used for the storage of household items. The 
carport is about ten feet from the existing dwelling (accurate measurement is needed), and is a frame structure 
covered with plywood and attached to a small storage shed. The applicant would like to enclose the remainder 
of the carport in order to have a work shop that is protected from the elements.  
 
The proposed workshop will not be out of character with other small sheds that have been built in the area over 
the years provided that it is finished to match the existing dwelling. Since it will be an enclosed structure, it 
will need to meet the required ten foot setbacks from the existing dwelling, and will require CID approval, 
especially if there is to be any electrical work in the shed.  
 
CONSISTENCY WITH THE CODE: 
The PZHAC will need to determine that the proposed pool will be compatible with the HR Zoning of the 
property.  
 
The applicant will be present at the work session to provide further details about the proposed construction of 
the walls and shed, and will be available to answer any questions that may arise. 
 

PHOTO OF SUBJECT PROPERTY 

 
 



Doña Ana County, NM
General Reference Maps

2014 Aerial Addresses County Address Points

+
–



PHOTOS SHOWING LOCATION OF CARPORT AT NORTH SIDE OF PROPERTY 

 
 

 







 

 

 

 

 

 

PZHAC MEETING 

MINUTES 

APRIL 4, 2019 

 

(PART OF CONSENT AGENDA) 

  



 

                                                                                                   
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

PZHAC WORK SESSION 
AGENDA 

APRIL 2, 2019 
 
THE PLANNING, ZONING AND HISTORICAL APPROPRIATENESS COMMISSION (PZHAC) WILL HOLD 
A WORK SESSION, TUESDAY, APRIL 2, 2019 AT 5:00 P.M. IN THE BOARD ROOM OF THE MESILLA 
TOWN HALL, 2231 AVENIDA DE MESILLA. 
 
Item 1: Submitted by Jorge Larrazabal; a request to discuss plans to construct a carport, garage, and storage structure as a 
720 square foot addition to an existing dwelling on a residential at property at 2195 Calle del Norte. (Case 060852) 
Zoned: Historical Residential (HR) 
The applicant was present to discuss the request and answer any questions that might arise.  Staff provided a brief 
introduction of the case, stating that the applicant originally intended to build a metal carport and storage structure on 
the property. This proposal was originally heard by the PZHAC at their March 18 Work Session and denied because 
the proposed metal structure would be out of character with the Development Zone for the property. The applicant has 
returned with a new set of plans for the carport/storage structure. According to the applicant, the carport/storage 
structure would be a site-built addition to the dwelling and would be finished to match the dwelling completely. The 
style would also very be similar to other carports in the area.   The proposal appeared t address all of the issues that 
were brought up at the March 18 Work session about the original proposal. There were no other issues.  
 
Item 2: Submitted by Jake Quinones of Quinones Design/Build for Emilie Cano; a request to discuss plans to repair the 
adobe walls and roof on a dwelling at 2206 Avenida de Mesilla. (Case 060862) Zoned: Historical Commercial (HC) 
The applicant’ contractor was present to discuss the request and answer any questions that might arise.  Staff provided 
a brief introduction of the case, stating that the purpose of the request was for the applicant to repair serious issues 
with various parts of the structure that were added in the 1960’s. According to the contractor, the proposed work would 
various problems and deficiencies that have occurred over time but would not affect the overall historic character or 
style of the dwelling. Issues addressed were the extent of the repairs, what would be replaced, and if there would be any 
changes t the appearance of the dwelling. 
 
Item 3: Submitted by George A. Klebansky, a request to discuss plans to install a temporary 15-18 foot wide four foot 
high above ground pool on a residential property at 3116 Avenida de Mesilla. (Case 060868) Zoned: Rural Agricultural 
(RA). 
The applicant was present to discuss the request and answer any questions that might arise.  Staff provided a brief 
introduction of the case, stating that the applicant intended to set up a temporary four-foot high pool in the backyard of 
the dwelling. According to the applicant, the pool would be the type that you buy at Walmart for about $350 and set up 
within several hours. The pool can be taken down at the end of each season. According to Tom Maese, Chief Inspector 
for CID, since the pool would be at a height of four feet above ground without a deck and with a folding ladder, a 
fence for security was recommended, but not required by the Building Code for this type of pool. Since pools are 
ancillary to the residential use of the property, they are allowed by the RA zoning of the property. There were no issues 
with the proposal. 
 

 
 

PZHAC REGULAR MEETING 
AGENDA 

APRIL 2, 2019   
 
THE PLANNING, ZONING AND HISTORICAL APPROPRIATENESS COMMISSION (PZHAC) WILL HOLD 
ITS REGULARLY SCHEDULED MEETING TUESDAY, APRIL 2, 2019 AT 6:00 P.M. IN THE B OARD 
ROOM OF THE MESILLA TOWN HALL, 2231 AVENIDA DE MESILLA. 
 



 

I.   PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
II.  ROLL CALL AND DETERMINATION OF A QUORUM  

Commissioners Houston and Prieto were absent. Commission Chair Hernandez and Commissioners Nevarez and 
Lucero were present. A quorum was present. 
 

III. CHANGES/APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
In order to expedite the meeting and take care of regular business promptly, Staff recommended that the agenda 
be amended to allow the Public Hearing to be held after all of the regular cases were heard and disposed of.  A 
motion to approve the agenda as amended was made by Commissioner Nevarez, seconded by Commissioner 
Lucero, and approved by a vote of 3-0. 
 

IV. *ACCEPTANCE OF THE CONSENT AGENDA 
Note: Items on the agenda indicated by an asterisk (*) are on the consent agenda and will be voted on with one 
motion unless a Commissioner requests that a specific item be removed for discussion. 
There were no changes to the Consent Agenda. A motion to approve the agenda was made by Commissioner 
Nevarez, seconded by Commissioner Lucero, and approved by a vote of 3 - 0. 
 

A. *PZHAC MINUTES – PZHAC Work Session and Meeting minutes of March 18, 2019. 
Approved as part of the Consent Agenda 
 

B. *ADMINISTRATIVE APPROVAL 
Zoning Permits 
1. Case 060864 – Northwest corner of Avenida de Mesilla and Calle de Santiago, submitted by Patrick Taylor 

for Robert Tustin; a request for a zoning permit to repair the base of an adobe wall on a dwelling on this 
property. Zoned: Historic Residential (HR) 
Approved as part of the Consent Agenda 
 

2. Case 060866 – 2878 Calle de San Albino, submitted by Jorge Larrazabal; a request for a zoning permit to 
allow the replacement of an evaporative cooler with a refrigerated air conditioner and upgrade the electric 
panel on a dwelling at this address. Zoned: Residential Farming (RF)  
Approved as part of the Consent Agenda 

 
V. PZHAC NEW BUSINESS: 

A. PUBLIC HEARING AND DECISION (The Public Hearing was held after the other cases had been heard.) 
Z19-001 – Submitted by Jesus Caro, an application for a zone change from Rural Farm, five acre minimum lot 
size (RF) to Residential, one acre minimum lot size (R-1) for a 4.36 acre residential parcel located at the west 
end of Fresquez /Snow Road (a private easement). 
The PZHAC closed the Regular Meeting and opened the Public Hearing. The applicant was present to 
provide information, and to answer any questions that might arise. Staff provided a brief description of the 
request and provided the PZHAC with the applicant’s rationale for requesting the zone change. 
 
Input taken from the public during the Public Hearing consisted of: 
 
Solomon Perez - notified property owner and neighbor of applicant 
Located just west end of the R-1 zoned properties, but is not zoned R-1, and is not in the faming business. 
Stated that the Town needs to grow and needs revenue. Farming will not provide the revenue the Town 
needs, therefore property owners should be able to subdivide their land to provide more property tax for the 
Town. Stated that he supports the zone change application wholeheartedly. 
 
Chris Alexander – Town Business Owner and former PZHAC Commissioner 
Stated that people are not aware of the concept of weighted zoning in which the Town is zoned from dense 
use to sparse use. Said that the Town had tried to protect farming through zoning and created a “greenbelt” 
around the Town. Many lots were zoned RF even though they did not meet the five acre size requirements 
and that protection of the RF zoning in order to protect the existence of Mesilla. However, since the Town 
allowed the R-1 zoning in the first place, it should be fair to the other small property owners and “support” 
the zone change. 
 
 



 

 
There were no other comments and the PZHAC voted to close the Public Hearing and reopen the Regular 
Meeting.   
 
Commission Chair Hernandez asked for input from the PZHAC. 
 
Commissioner Lucero 
Expressed surprise that the applicant wants to change his view of preserving the “greenbelt” and create 
smaller properties, since he was a main proponent behind preserving it through the years. She does not want 
to see Mesilla become another Las Cruces. She will stand by the “greenbelt”. She stated that the Town has 
turned down other development in the RF zone, and she does not want to create a precedent with this case. 
 
Commission Chair Hernandez 
Stated that he would like to get legal clarification on some points and recommended postponing the case in 
order to obtain legal opinions. 
 
Commissioner Lucero 
Said that the Ordinance needs to be protected, and that we are not talking about a prior zone change that 
took place in 1980 or the subdivision of properties, the concern of the PZHAC should be the current zone 
change request. 
 
Commissioner Nevarez 
Would like more information 
 
Juan  Padilla – Property owner in the R-1 zone 
Stated that the subdivision of the properties zoned R-1 was done prior to the R-1 zoning of the property. 
 
Commission Chair Hernandez 
Called for a postponement of the case in order to get legal opinions on: would this be considered spot zoning; 
whether the case would set a precedent; and whether the applicant’s parcel should be considered contiguous 
to the parcels zoned R-1. This was seconded by Commissioner Nevarez. A vote was taken with Commissioner 
Nevarez voting for postponement and Commissioner Lucero voting against postponement. Commission 
Chair voted for postponement and the case was postponed.   
 
There were no other coments. 

 
B.  PUBLIC INPUT ON CASES 

None 
 

C.  CASES:  
1. Case 060821 - Submitted by Christina DiMatteo; a request for a summary subdivision to allow for a lot line 

adjustment to combine a 0.18 acre property at 3066 Snow Road with a 0.30 acre property immediately to 
the south and to adjust the western lot line of the two properties to create a single 0.69 acre property. Zoned: 
Rural Agricultural 

 Staff provided a brief review of this request, explaining the applicant’s reasons for the request. Staff also 
included the fact that the proposed lot size of 0.69 acres was approved by the Board of Adjustment (BOA) 
as a variance to lot size approved after a Public Hearing held March 26, 2019; although this information 
was not in the written agenda packet.  The PZHAC determined that there were no issues. A motion was 
made by Commissioner Nevarez to approve the request, seconded by Commissioner Lucero, and 
approved by a vote of 3 - 0. 

 
2. Case 060852 – 2195 Calle del Norte, submitted by Jorge Larrazabal; a request for a zoning permit to allow 

the construction of a carport, garage, and storage structure as an addition to an existing dwelling at this 
address. Zoned: Historical Residential (HR) This case was heard during the Work Session – Item 1) 
Staff provided a brief review of this request, explaining that this case was heard during the Work 
Session. The PZHAC determined that there were no issues. A motion was made by Commissioner 
Nevarez to approve the request, seconded by Commissioner Lucero, and approved by a vote of 3 - 0. 
 
 



 

3. Case 060862 – 2206 Avenida de Mesilla, submitted by Jake Quinones of Quinones Design/Build for Emilie 
Cano; a request for a zoning permit to allow the repair of the adobe walls and roof on a dwelling at 2206 
Avenida de Mesilla. Zoned: Historical Commercial (HC) (This case was heard during the Work Session 
– Item 2) 
Staff provided a brief review of this request, explaining that this case was heard during the Work 
Session. The PZHAC determined that there were no issues. A motion was made by Commissioner Lucero 
to approve the request, seconded by Commissioner Nevarez, and approved by a vote of 3 - 0. 
 

4. Case 060868 - 3116 Avenida de Mesilla, submitted by George A. Klebansky, a request for a zoning permit 
to install a temporary 15-18 foot wide four foot high above ground pool on a residential property at this 
address. Zoned: Rural Agricultural (RA). (This case was heard during the Work Session – Item 3)   
Staff provided a brief review of this request, explaining that this case was heard during the Work 
Session. The PZHAC determined that there were no issues. A motion was made by Commissioner 
Nevarez to approve the request, seconded by Commissioner Lucero, and approved by a vote of 3 - 0. 
  

VI.   PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Susan Krueger – resident 
Referencing the dwelling proposed by the Kanes on Calle de Colon discussed by the PZHAC at the March 18 
PZHAC Work Session, stated that the aplciant had claimed that there are no particular architectural styles in 
Mesilla, reference the Yguado Plan and another “Style” document that she had.  
 
Chris Alexander – Town Business Owner and former PZHAC Commissioner 
Referencing the zone change for the property owned by Arturo Jurado, stated that the opinion for “spot zoning’ 
was erroneous in that the commercial parcels in the County should never have been taken into account. 
Precedence was set. The property that is zoned R-1 is in the Comprehensive Plan because it was zoned R-1 in 
1979, and a precedence was set. .  
 
Jesus Caro – applicant 
Stated that the “greenbelt” was no longer viable for farming. 
   
Solomon Perez - notified property owner and neighbor of applicant 
Stated that larger farmers can make a living from farming their properties, smaller farmers cannot, and that the 
“greenbelt” lots cannot be farmed anymore. He also stated that the young have left because they can’t afford to 
stay due to the rules, and that Mesillaros and small farmers have been run off.  

  
VII.  PZHAC/STAFF COMMENTS   

Commissioner Lucero 
Stated that preservation of Mesilla is important, and that even though mistakes were made in the past does not 
mean they should be repeated. Past boards have turned down applications in the RF zone. Jesus should be 
supporting the ordinance, not working against it. It is important to preserve Mesilla.  
 

VIII. ADJOURNMENT  
The meeting  was adjourned at 7:26 pm. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  

NOTICE 

If you need an accommodation for a disability to enable you to fully participate in the hearing 
or meeting, please contact us at 524-3262 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting.   

Posted on 3/28/19 at the following locations: Town Hall - 2231 Avenida de Mesilla; Public 
Safety Building - 2670 Calle de Parian; Mesilla Community Center - 2251 Calle de Santiago; 
Shorty’s Food Mart - 2290 Avenida de Mesilla; Ristramnn Chile Co. - 2531 Avenida de Mesilla 
and the U.S. Post Office - 2253 Calle de Parian. 

 



 

 

 

 

 
 

 

PZHAC NEW BUSINESS 

APRIL 15, 2019 

 

ADMINISTRATIVE APPROVALS 

(PART OF CONSENT AGENDA) 

 

  



   
ADMINISTRATIVE APPROVAL 

BUILDING PERMIT REQUEST CASE 060871 
[PZHAC CONSENT AGENDA –4/15/2019] 

 
Item: 
Case 060871 – 2290 Calle de Parian, submitted by Felix Armijo; a request for a zoning permit to allow 
the repair of window frames on a commercial building at this address. Zoned: Historical Residential (HR) 
  
Description of Work Done: 
The applicant will repair damaged window panes on a commercial structure at this address. (The applicant 
has been informed that a permit and inspections from CID may also be necessary.) This is a minor repair 
and will not affect the heated/cooled area of the dwelling. The reason for the work is to repair damage to 
the wooden window panes caused by weathering of the wood. The repairs will not change the style of the 
structure.   
 
Consistency with the Code: 
Since this is a minor repair that will not affect or change the appearance of the structure, according to the 
applicant; and since the work will not consist of any additions or changes to heated/cooled areas of the 
structure, the permit may be approved administratively. [(15.15.030(B) - Application for building 
permit, Administrative Approval).Administrative Approval Permit –“Applications that are minor 
repairs or maintenance and do not alter or create additions to structures (buildings), walls or any 
other permanent fixtures on site may be approved administratively by staff…. Once all required 
information is provided, the community development staff may approve and issue the permit.”] 
 

PHOTO OF SUBJECT STRUCTURE FROM CALLE DE PARIAN 

 

 



Doña Ana County, NM
General Reference Maps

2014 Aerial Addresses County Address Points

+
–



PHOTO SHOWING WINDOWS BEING REPAIRED 

 
CLOSE-UP OF WINDOWS BEING REPAIRED 

 
  





ADMINISTRATIVE APPROVAL 
BUILDING PERMIT REQUEST CASE 060873 

[PZHAC CONSENT AGENDA –4/15/2019] 
 

Item: 
Case 060873 – 2168 Calle de Los Huertos, submitted by Geronimo  Garcia; a request for a zoning permit 
to allow the replacement of several roofing shingles on a dwelling at this address. Zoned: Historical 
Residential (HR) 
  
Description of Work Done: 
The applicant will repair a few damaged shingles on a roof on a dwelling at this address. The applicant 
intends to replace a few damaged shingles on the roof, but will not reroof the entire structure. A permit 
and inspections from CID will not be necessary.) This is a repair only and will not affect the 
heated/cooled area of the dwelling. The reason for the work is to repair damage to the shingles caused by 
storms in the past year. The repairs will not change the style of the structure.   
 
Consistency with the Code: 
Since this is a minor repair that will not affect or change the appearance of the structure, according to the 
applicant; and since the work will not consist of any additions or changes to heated/cooled areas of the 
structure, the permit may be approved administratively. [(15.15.030(B) - Application for building 
permit, Administrative Approval).Administrative Approval Permit –“Applications that are minor 
repairs or maintenance and do not alter or create additions to structures (buildings), walls or any 
other permanent fixtures on site may be approved administratively by staff…. Once all required 
information is provided, the community development staff may approve and issue the permit.”] 
 

PHOTO OF DWELLING FROM CALLE DE LOS HUERTOS 

 

  



Doña Ana County, NM
General Reference Maps

2014 Aerial Addresses County Address Points

+
–





ADMINISTRATIVE APPROVAL 
BUILDING PERMIT REQUEST CASE 060854 

[PZHAC CONSENT AGENDA –3/4/2019] 
 

Item: 
Case 060874 – 210 Capri Road, submitted by Vicki Kroeger; a request for a zoning permit to allow the 
installation of a concrete walkway to the back yard of a dwelling at this address. Zoned: Residential, one 
acre new lot size (R-1) 
  
Description of Work Done: 
The applicant will install a three foot wide by 63 foot long walkway from the front yard of the dwelling at 
this address to a patio area in the rear yard. Since this is flatwork and will have no structures associated 
with it or loads placed on it such as on a driveway or foundation, construction permits may not be 
required. The walkway will not change the style of the structure.   
 
Consistency with the Code: 
Since this is “flatwork” that will not affect or change the appearance of the structure, according to the 
applicant; and since the work will not consist of any additions or changes to heated/cooled areas of the 
structure, the permit may be approved administratively. [(15.15.030(B) - Application for building 
permit, Administrative Approval).Administrative Approval Permit –“Applications that are minor 
repairs or maintenance and do not alter or create additions to structures (buildings), walls or any 
other permanent fixtures on site may be approved administratively by staff…. Once all required 
information is provided, the community development staff may approve and issue the permit.”] 
 

PHOTO OF DWELLING FROM CAPRI ROAD 

 
  



Doña Ana County, NM
General Reference Maps

2014 Aerial Addresses County Address Points

+
–







   
ADMINISTRATIVE APPROVAL 

BUILDING PERMIT REQUEST CASE 060876 
[PZHAC CONSENT AGENDA –4/15/2019] 

 
Item: 
Case 060876 – 2631 Calle Tercera, submitted by Francisco Torres; a request for a zoning permit to allow 
the installation of a concrete pad (flatwork) for use as a patio for a dwelling at this address. Zoned: 
Historical Residential (HR) 
  
Description of Work Done: 
The applicant will install a concrete pad to be used as a patio at the side of an existing dwelling at this 
address. Since this is flatwork and will have no structures associated with it or loads placed on it such as 
on a driveway or foundation, construction permits may not be required. The patio will not change the 
style of the structure.   
 
Consistency with the Code: 
Since this is “flatwork” that will not affect or change the appearance of the structure, according to the 
applicant; and since the work will not consist of any additions or changes to heated/cooled areas of the 
structure, the permit may be approved administratively. [(15.15.030(B) - Application for building 
permit, Administrative Approval).Administrative Approval Permit –“Applications that are minor 
repairs or maintenance and do not alter or create additions to structures (buildings), walls or any 
other permanent fixtures on site may be approved administratively by staff…. Once all required 
information is provided, the community development staff may approve and issue the permit.”] 
 

PHOTO OF SUBJECT STRUCTURE FROM CALLE TERCERA 

 



Doña Ana County, NM
General Reference Maps

2014 Aerial Addresses County Address Points

+
–





 

 

 

 

 

PZHAC NEW BUSINESS 

APRIL 15, 2019 

 

PZHAC DECISIONS 

ZONING PERMITS 

 

  



 
PZHAC ACTION FORM 

ZONING PERMIT 060872 
[PZHAC REVIEW – 4/15/2019] 

STAFF ANALYSIS 
 

(Decision to be based on information presented during the Work Session – Item 1) 

 
Itm: 
Case 060872 – 2290 Calle de Parian, submitted by Felix Armijo; a request for a zoning permit to allow  the installation of  
the windows from an old door to be used on the west side of the store occupied by “The Real Man” . Zoned: Historical 
Residential (HR) 
  
Staff Analysis: 
The proposed request was discussed in the PZHAC Work Session held prior to this meeting.  (Please refer to the 
information provided in the write-up for this item in the Work Session.) 
 
If it is determined that the proposed windows will be acceptable for the zoning of the property, or if an alternate solution 
is arrived at, then the request can proceed on the assumption that all requirements of the Code will be satisfied. The 
PZHAC should continue on to approve the request based on the Findings stated below. 
 
If, on the other hand, it is determined that the proposed windows will no be acceptable to the zoning of the property, and 
no other solution can be reached, then the PZHAC should either postpone the request further until the applicant can return 
with a proposal that meets the standards set forth by the PZHAC; or the PZHAC should deny the request based on the 
request not meeting any or all of the Findings as listed.  
 
Estimated Cost: @ $350.00 
 
Consistency with the Code:  
The PZHAC will need to determine that the proposed windows will be consistent with the zoning requirements for this 
property. Additionally, the PZHAC will also need to determine that the request, as submitted, is consistent with the all 
other sections of the Building and Zoning Codes that may be applied to this project. 
 
Findings: 

• The PZHAC has jurisdiction to review and approve this request. 
• The proposed work consists of installing an old door with windows as a set of windows on a commercial building 

at 2290 Calle de Parian. 
• The PZHAC has determined that the proposed work meets all applicable Code requirements. 

 
PZHAC OPTIONS: 
1.   Recommend approval of the requested zoning permit to the BOT.  
2.  Recommend approval of the requested zoning permit with conditions to the BOT.  
3.  Reject the permit. 
 
PZHAC ACTION: 

 
 

  



PZHAC ACTION FORM 
ZONING PERMIT 060875 

[PZHAC REVIEW – 4/15/2019] 
STAFF ANALYSIS 

 
Item: 
Case 060875 – 2684 Calle de Principal, submitted by Elizabeth Ann Rohovec; a request for a zoning permit to 
repaint a dwelling at this address. Zoned: Historical Residential (HR) 
 
Staff Analysis: 
According to the Histroic Register for the Town, the dwelling appears to have been built in the 1890’s (see 
attached pages from the Register). The dwelling does not appear to have changed much from the time it was 
included in the Register (see attached photo). Currently, the dwelling is painted in a color that is very similar to 
“Suede”, which is an approved color (see attached photo and color chart). The applicant would like to repaint 
the dwelling in a color called “Santa Fe” (see attached) which is very similar to “Santa Fe Brown” or “La 
Luz”, which are both approved colors that are darker and browner than the existing color.. 
 
There will be no changes to the dwelling itself. The color will be similar to other structures and dwellings in 
the area.   
 
Estimated Cost: @ $3500.00 
   
Consistency with the Code: 
A photo of the dwelling is attached. According to the applicant, the color chosen will be compatible with the 
surrounding properties. Since the dwelling is in a Historic zoning district, the following section of the Code 
applies: 
 

18.33.080 Historical appropriateness permit. 
A. Identification. A permit for a certificate of historical appropriateness shall be required before any of 
the following actions or work is undertaken: new construction, exterior alteration, demolition or 
removal. All work or acts of new construction or exterior alteration requiring a permit for a certificate of 
appropriateness shall comply with the design criteria established by the precedent styles within the 
development zone of the proposed work. 

 
The PZHAC will also need to determine that the request, as submitted, is consistent with the all other sections 
of the Building and Zoning Codes that may be applied to this project. 
 
Findings: 

• The PZHAC has jurisdiction to review and approve this request. 
• The proposed work consists of repainting the dwelling and at 2684 Calle Principal. 
• The PZHAC has determined that the proposed color meets all applicable Code requirements. 

 
PZHAC OPTIONS: 
1. Recommend approval of the requested building permit to the BOT.  
2. Recommend approval of the requested building permit to the BOT with conditions.  
3.   Reject the permit. 
 
PZHAC ACTION: 

 
 
 



Doña Ana County, NM
General Reference Maps

2014 Aerial Addresses County Address Points

+
–



PHOTOS OF THE DWELLING FROM CALLE PRINCIPAL SHOWING THE EXISTING COLOR 

 
 

 



larry
Rectangle

larry
Rectangle

larry
Rectangle

larry
Rectangle



larry
Rectangle



THE PROPOSED COLOR CHOSEN 

 
 

ALLOWED COLORS 

 





 
PZHAC ACTION FORM 

ZONING PERMIT 060877 
[PZHAC REVIEW – 4/15/2019] 

STAFF ANALYSIS 
 

(Decision to be based on information presented during the Work Session – Item 2) 

 

Item: 
Case 060877 – 3000 Mesilla Terrace, submitted by Robert Carson; a request for a zoning permit to allow the construction 
of a new dwelling on a vacant property located at this address. Zoned: Rural Agricultural (RA) 
  
Staff Analysis: 
The proposed request was discussed in the PZHAC Work Session held prior to this meeting.  (Please refer to the 
information provided in the write-up for this item in the Work Session.) 
 
If it is determined that the proposed dwelling will be acceptable for the zoning of the property, or if an alternate solution is 
arrived at, then the request can proceed on the assumption that all requirements of the Code will be satisfied. The PZHAC 
should continue on to approve the request based on the Findings stated below. 
 
If, on the other hand, it is determined that the proposed dwelling will not be acceptable to the zoning of the property, and 
no other solution can be reached, then the PZHAC should either postpone the request further until the applicant can return 
with a proposal that meets the standards set forth by the PZHAC; or the PZHAC should deny the request based on the 
request not meeting any or all of the Findings as listed.  
 
Estimated Cost: @ $300,000.00 
 
Consistency with the Code:  
The PZHAC will need to determine that the proposed dwelling will be consistent with the zoning requirements for this 
property. Additionally, the PZHAC will also need to determine that the request, as submitted, is consistent with the all 
other sections of the Building and Zoning Codes that may be applied to this project. 
 
Findings: 

• The PZHAC has jurisdiction to review and approve this request. 
• The proposed work building a new dwelling at 3000 Mesilla Terrace.  
• The PZHAC has determined that the proposed work meets all applicable Code requirements. 

 
PZHAC OPTIONS: 
1. Approve the requested zoning permit. 
2. Approve the requested zoning permit with conditions.  
3.   Reject the permit. 
 
PZHAC ACTION: 

 

 

  



PZHAC ACTION FORM 
ZONING PERMIT 060878 

[PZHAC REVIEW – 4/15/2019] 
STAFF ANALYSIS 

 
Item: 
Case 060878 – 2838 Calle de Principal, submitted by Anita M. Morales; a request for a zoning permit to 
restucco a dwelling this address. Zoned: Historical Residential (HR)  
 
Staff Analysis: 
The dwelling was built after 1980 and it appears that the style  of the dwelling is similar in style to surrounding 
structures, and that the dwelling itself is not out of character with the surrounding area, or other structures that 
are characteristic of Mesilla. Currently, the dwelling is finished in a grey scratch-coat. The applicant would 
like to finish the dwelling by applying a color coat. The color chosen (“Acoma”) is a color that is very close to 
a color that is allowed in the Town’s catalog of acceptable colors (“Dusk”) (see attached color chart).  The 
result is that the overall appearance of the dwelling when finished will fit in with the other structures in  Town 
that are in the Historical Register.  
 
Estimated Cost: @ $812.34 
   
Consistency with the Code: 
Photos of the structure are attached. According to the applicant, the color chosen will be compatible with the 
surrounding properties. Since the dwelling is in a Historic zoning district, the following section of the Code 
applies: 
 

18.33.080 Historical appropriateness permit. 
A. Identification. A permit for a certificate of historical appropriateness shall be required before any of 
the following actions or work is undertaken: new construction, exterior alteration, demolition or 
removal. All work or acts of new construction or exterior alteration requiring a permit for a certificate of 
appropriateness shall comply with the design criteria established by the precedent styles within the 
development zone of the proposed work. 

 
The PZHAC will also need to determine that the request, as submitted, is consistent with the all other sections 
of the Building and Zoning Codes that may be applied to this project. 
 
Findings: 

• The PZHAC has jurisdiction to review and approve this request. 
• The proposed work consists of restuccoing the dwelling at 2838 Calle Principal with a color that is very 

similar to a color that is accepted for the Town.  
• The PZHAC has determined that the proposed color meets all applicable Code requirements. 

 
PZHAC OPTIONS: 
1. Recommend approval of the requested building permit to the BOT.  
2. Recommend approval of the requested building permit to the BOT with conditions.  
3.   Reject the permit. 
 
PZHAC ACTION: 

 
 

  



Doña Ana County, NM
General Reference Maps

2014 Aerial Addresses County Address Points

+
–



CHOSEN COLOR 

 
 
 

APPROVED COLORS 

 

 





PHOTO OF THE REAR OF THE DWELLING SHOWING THE EXISTING COLOR 

 

PHOTO OF THE FRONT OF THE DWELLING FROM CALLE PRINCIPAL 

 





 
PZHAC ACTION FORM 

ZONING PERMIT 060879 
[PZHAC REVIEW – 4/15/2019] 

STAFF ANALYSIS 
 

(Decision to be based on information presented during the Work Session – Item 3) 
 
 
Item: 
Case 060879 – 2880 Teresita Street, submitted by William and Mary Davidson; a request for a zoning permit to install a 
trellis above an existing rock wall at the rear of a residential property at this address. Zoned: Historical Residential (HR) 
  
Staff Analysis: 
The proposed request was discussed in the PZHAC Work Session held prior to this meeting.  (Please refer to the 
information provided in the write-up for this item in the Work Session.) 
 
If it is determined that the proposed wall extension will be acceptable for the zoning of the property, or if an alternate 
solution is arrived at, then the request can proceed on the assumption that all requirements of the Code will be satisfied. 
The PZHAC should continue on to approve the request based on the Findings stated below. 
 
If, on the other hand, it is determined that the proposed wall extension will not be acceptable to the zoning of the property, 
and no other solution can be reached, then the PZHAC should either postpone the request further until the applicant can 
return with a proposal that meets the standards set forth by the PZHAC; or the PZHAC should deny the request based on 
the request not meeting any or all of the Findings as listed.  
 
Estimated Cost: $700.00 
 
Consistency with the Code:  
The PZHAC will need to determine that the proposed wall extension pool will be consistent with the zoning requirements 
for this property. Additionally, the PZHAC will also need to determine that the request, as submitted, is consistent with 
the all other sections of the Building and Zoning Codes that may be applied to this project. 
 
Findings: 

• The PZHAC has jurisdiction to review and approve this request. 
• The proposed work consists of increasing the height of a rock wall by add a trellis as an extension to height on a 

residential property at 2880 Teresita Street. 
• The PZHAC has determined that the proposed work meets all applicable Code requirements. 

 
PZHAC OPTIONS: 
1.   Recommend approval of the requested zoning permit to the BOT.  
2.  Recommend approval of the requested zoning permit with conditions to the BOT.  
3.  Reject the permit. 
 
PZHAC ACTION: 

 

 

  



 
PZHAC ACTION FORM 

ZONING PERMIT 060880 
[PZHAC REVIEW – 4/15/2019] 

STAFF ANALYSIS 
 

(Decision to be based on information presented during the Work Session – Item 4) 
 
 
Item: 
Case 060880 – 2483 Calle de San Albino, submitted by Eugenio G. Diaz; a request for a zoning permit to build a work 
shed behind a dwelling at this address. Zoned: Historical Residential (HR) 
  
Staff Analysis: 
The proposed request was discussed in the PZHAC Work Session held prior to this meeting.  (Please refer to the 
information provided in the write-up for this item in the Work Session.) 
 
If it is determined that the proposed shed will be acceptable for the zoning of the property, or if an alternate solution is 
arrived at, then the request can proceed on the assumption that all requirements of the Code will be satisfied. The PZHAC 
should continue on to approve the request based on the Findings stated below. 
 
If, on the other hand, it is determined that the proposed shed will not be acceptable to the zoning of the property, and no 
other solution can be reached, then the PZHAC should either postpone the request further until the applicant can return 
with a proposal that meets the standards set forth by the PZHAC; or the PZHAC should deny the request based on the 
request not meeting any or all of the Findings as listed.  
 
Estimated Cost: $700.00 
 
Consistency with the Code:  
The PZHAC will need to determine that the proposed shed will be consistent with the zoning requirements for this 
property. Additionally, the PZHAC will also need to determine that the request, as submitted, is consistent with the all 
other sections of the Building and Zoning Codes that may be applied to this project. 
 
Findings: 

• The PZHAC has jurisdiction to review and approve this request. 
• The proposed work consists of converting an existing carport into a small work shed on a residential property at 

2483 Calle de San Albino.  
• The PZHAC has determined that the proposed work meets all applicable Code requirements. 

 
PZHAC OPTIONS: 
1.   Recommend approval of the requested zoning permit to the BOT.  
2.  Recommend approval of the requested zoning permit with conditions to the BOT.  
3.  Reject the permit. 
 
PZHAC ACTION: 

 

 


	Blank Page
	Permit 060878-write up.pdf
	18.33.080 Historical appropriateness permit.
	A. Identification. A permit for a certificate of historical appropriateness shall be required before any of the following actions or work is undertaken: new construction, exterior alteration, demolition or removal. All work or acts of new construction...

	Permit 060875-write up.pdf
	18.33.080 Historical appropriateness permit.
	A. Identification. A permit for a certificate of historical appropriateness shall be required before any of the following actions or work is undertaken: new construction, exterior alteration, demolition or removal. All work or acts of new construction...

	Blank Page



